

**REVISOR'S REPORT 2015**  
**Chapter 2**

**Submitted to the Joint Standing  
Committee on Judiciary  
pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes,  
Title 1, chapter 4.**

**Office of the Revisor of Statutes  
State House Station 7  
Augusta, Maine 04330-0007  
(207) 287-1650**

**Sec. 1. 4 MRSA §251**, as amended by PL 2015, c. 460, §3, is corrected to read:

**§251. General jurisdiction**

Each judge may take the probate of wills and grant letters testamentary or of administration on the estates of all deceased persons who, at the time of their death, ~~where~~ were inhabitants or residents of the judge's county or who, not being residents of the State, died leaving estate to be administered in the judge's county, or whose estate is afterwards found therein; and has jurisdiction of all matters relating to the settlement of such estates. A judge may grant leave to adopt children, change the names of persons, appoint guardians for minors and others according to law and has jurisdiction as to persons under guardianship, and as to whatever else is conferred by law, except in cases in which the District Court has jurisdiction over a child pursuant to section 152, subsection 5-A.

**EXPLANATION**

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 2. 5 MRSA §7064, 2nd ¶**, as enacted by PL 2003, c. 177, §1, is corrected to read:

Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, a permanent, classified employee who accepts appointment to a major policy-influencing position listed in section 931 and in sections 932 to 952 retains, for the duration of the appointment, promotion, transfer and demotion rights consistent with this section 7064.

**EXPLANATION**

This section corrects an internal reference.

---

**Sec. 3. 5 MRSA §17152, sub-§1**, as enacted by PL 1985, c. 801, §§5, 7, is corrected to read:

**1. Members' Contribution Fund.** The Members' Contribution Fund; and

**EXPLANATION**

This section makes a technical correction.

---

**Sec. 4. 5 MRSA §17806, sub-§1, ¶A-2**, as enacted by PL 2015, c. 334, §2, is corrected to read:

A-2. Regardless of the amount of increase in the Consumer Price Index, for cost-of-living adjustments awarded in fiscal year 2015-16 and fiscal year 2016-17 only, the board shall automatically make a percentage increase in retirement benefits of no less than

2.55%. The increase applies to that portion of the retirement benefit that would otherwise be subject to an increase under ~~subsection A~~ paragraph A.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 5. 5 MRSA §18252-B, sub-§2**, as enacted by PL 1997, c. 709, §4, is corrected to read:

**2. Employer contribution.** The employer must contribute as a percentage of compensation on behalf of each employee in each pay period an amount not less than the amount the employer would be required to pay if the employee were covered under the United ~~State~~ States Social Security Act, not including the Medicare portion of the payment, consistent with applicable contribution limits of federal law.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects clerical errors.

---

**Sec. 6. 7 MRSA §309**, as amended by PL 2009, c. 337, §9, is corrected to read:

#### **§309. Annual review**

The commissioner and the ~~Agriculture~~ Agricultural Development Committee shall, on an annual basis, review the effectiveness of the programs operated under the provisions of this chapter and provide a summary of the review to the Commissioner of Economic and Community Development.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 7. 12 MRSA §11403, sub-§2**, as amended by PL 2015, c. 301, §21, is corrected to read:

**2. Open archery season on deer.** The commissioner shall by rule establish a regular archery-only season beginning at least 30 days prior and extending to the beginning of the regular deer hunting season, as described in section 11401, subsection 1, paragraph A, for the purpose of hunting deer with bow and arrow only. During the regular archery-only season on deer, ~~except as provided in section 10952, subsection 2 and section 10953, subsection 1-B,~~ the following restrictions apply.

A. A person may not take a deer during a regular archery-only season unless that person uses a hand-held bow and broadhead arrow in accordance with section 11214, subsection 1, paragraph P.

B. A person may not carry firearms of any kind while hunting any species of wildlife with bow and arrow during the regular archery-only season on deer, except that a person who holds a license that allows hunting with firearms may carry a handgun. This paragraph may not be construed to prohibit a person who holds a valid permit to carry a concealed handgun pursuant to Title 25, section 2003 from carrying a handgun.

C. Except as provided in section 11109-A, subsection 3, if a person takes a deer with bow and arrow during the regular archery-only season on deer, that person is precluded from further hunting for deer during that year.

D. Except as provided in this subsection, the provisions of this Part concerning deer are applicable to the taking of deer with bow and arrow, including the transportation, registration and possession of deer taken by this method.

A person who violates this subsection commits a Class E crime.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects cross-references.

---

**Sec. 8. 12 MRSA §13104, sub-§16, ¶A,** as amended by PL 2015, c. 130, §1, is corrected to read:

A. The nonresident's snowmobile has a valid registration from another state or from the Canadian ~~provinces~~ province of New Brunswick or Quebec; and

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 9. 17-A MRSA §1118-A, sub-§1, ¶A,** as enacted by PL 2015, c. 485, §3, is corrected to read:

A. At the time of the offense, the person has one or more prior convictions for any Class A, B or C offense under this chapter or for engaging in substantially similar conduct to that of the Class A, B or C offenses under this chapter in another jurisdiction and the drug is:

- (1) A schedule W drug. Violation of this subparagraph is a Class A crime; or
- (2) A schedule X, Y or Z drug. Violation of this subparagraph is a Class B crime;

Section 9-A governs the use of prior convictions when determining a sentence, except that, for the purposes of this paragraph, the date of each prior conviction may precede the commission of the offense being enhanced by more than 10 years;

### EXPLANATION

This section makes a technical correction.

---

**Sec. 10. 19-A MRSA §3051, sub-§2, ¶F**, as amended by PL 2015, c. 296, Pt. C, §23 and affected by Pt. D, §1, is corrected to read:

F. An acknowledged father of the child as provided in ~~Title 19-A~~, chapter 61, subchapter 3;

#### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 11. 22 MRSA §3035, sub-§1, ¶C**, as enacted by PL 1997, c. 598, §1, is corrected to read:

C. For other items and services such as photographs and transparencies, additional tests relating to ~~toxicology~~ toxicology or specimens and videotaping:

- (1) A handling fee per case, \$20; and
- (2) Anticipated costs of providing the item or service, including shipping charges.

#### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 12. 22 MRSA §3271, sub-§1**, as enacted by PL 1973, c. 790, §3, is corrected to read:

1. A program of regular monthly state supplemental income for blind, disabled and elderly people shall be provided for residents of the State of Maine. Benefits under the state supplemental income program shall be based on need and provided in supplementation of benefits provided by the United ~~State~~ States Government to aged, blind and disabled individuals pursuant to Title XVI of the United States Social Security Act, as amended. Benefits shall be provided to any person who, on account of blindness, disability or age, ~~qualify~~ qualifies for supplemental security income provided pursuant to Title XVI of the United States Social Security Act, as amended, and may, based on need, be provided to individuals who would, but for their income, be eligible for such supplemental security income benefits.

#### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical and a grammatical error.

---

**Sec. 13. 24-A MRSA §2014**, as amended by PL 1997, c. 592, §60, is corrected to read:

**§2014. ~~Producer's surety bond~~ Producer with surplus lines authority may compensate another producer**

A licensed producer with surplus lines authority may accept and place surplus line business for any insurance producer licensed in this State for the kind of insurance involved, and may compensate the producer for the business.

**EXPLANATION**

This section corrects a headnote to reflect the subject of the section.

---

**Sec. 14. 24-A MRSA §2842, sub-§5**, as amended by PL 1989, c. 490, §3, is corrected to read:

**5. Exceptions.** This section shall not apply to employee group insurance policies issued to employers with 20 or fewer employees insured under the group policy or to group policies designed primarily to supplement the Civilian Health and Medical Program of the Uniformed Services, as described in ~~Title 10~~ of the United States Code, Title 10, Section 1072, subsection 4.

**EXPLANATION**

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 15. 24-A MRSA §3362, sub-§2**, as enacted by PL 1969, c. 132, §1, is corrected to read:

**2. Not less than 10 days' written notice of the meeting shall be given.** Notice addressed to the insurer's members at their respective post-office addresses last of record with the insurer and deposited, postage prepaid, in a letter depository of the United ~~State~~ States post office, shall be deemed to have been given when so mailed. In lieu of mailed notice, the insurer may publish the notice in such publication or publications as shall afford a majority of its members a reasonable opportunity to have actual advance notice of the meeting. The notice shall state the purposes of the meeting, and no business shall be transacted at the meeting of which notice was not so given.

**EXPLANATION**

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 16. 24-A MRSA §6204**, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 482, §1, is corrected to read:

**§6204. Withdrawal plan**

Any provider who has obtained a certificate of authority from the superintendent and who plans neither to renew existing agreements nor to offer new agreements shall submit a

withdrawal plan to the superintendent at least 60 days prior to implementing its proposed plan. The plan shall include, but not be limited to, requirements and procedures for meeting the provider's existing ~~contractual~~ contractual obligations, providing security in the event of a subsequent insolvency and meeting any applicable statutory obligations. The plan shall also comply with any further terms and conditions which are prescribed by rules adopted by the superintendent. The plan shall not be implemented without the approval of the superintendent.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 17. 28-A MRSA §1071, sub-§6**, as amended by PL 2015, c. 214, §6, is corrected to read:

**6. Server requirements.** A manufacturer licensed by the bureau under section 1355-A, a certificate of approval holder or a wholesaler who provides malt liquor, wine, fortified wine or spirits for the public event or gathering being sponsored may serve its product at the event. An incorporated civic organization issued a license in accordance with this section shall provide the names of persons not licensed under ~~chapters~~ chapter 51, 55 or 59 who will be serving alcoholic beverages at the event. In the event that a server from that list is unavailable, a licensed manufacturer, distributor, wholesaler, small winery or small brewery that has provided alcoholic beverages to be served at the event may provide serving assistance.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 18. 29-A MRSA §2411, sub-§1-A, ¶D**, as amended by PL 2013, c. 604, §2, is corrected to read:

D. Violates paragraph A, B or C and:

(1) In fact causes serious bodily injury as defined in Title 17-A, section 2, subsection 23 to another person;

(1-A) In fact causes the death of another person; or

(2) Has either a prior conviction for a Class B or Class C crime under this section or former Title 29, section 1312-B or a prior criminal homicide conviction involving or resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs or with an alcohol level of 0.08 grams or more of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or 210 liters of breath. For purposes of this subparagraph, the 10-year limitation specified in section 2402 and Title 17-A, ~~subsection~~ section 9-A, subsection 3 does not apply to the prior criminal homicide conviction or to a prior conviction for a Class B or Class C crime under this section or former Title 29, section 1312-B. The convictions may have occurred at any time.

## EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 19. 30-A MRSA §4741, sub-§12**, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 and Pt. C, §106 and amended by PL 1989, c. 6; c. 9, §2; and c. 104, Pt. C, §§8 and 10, is corrected to read:

**12. Mortgage assistance payments.** Pursuant to the purposes of this Act to provide housing for persons of low income, the Maine State Housing Authority may make payments and binding commitments, subject to the authority's receipt of sufficient funds to honor these commitments from periodic appropriations from appropriate sources, to continue these payments if necessary over the life of the mortgage to mortgagors or to mortgagees on behalf of low-income persons to reduce interest costs on market rate mortgages to as low as 1%½.

- A. No commitment made by the authority under this subsection may be construed to commit the faith and credit of this State.
- B. Persons benefiting from these mortgage assistance payments shall, according to guidelines to be included in the mortgage agreements, be required to pay a larger interest payment as their ability to pay increases;

## EXPLANATION

This section makes technical corrections.

---

**Sec. 20. 30-A MRSA §5048, sub-§1**, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 380, Pt. A, §2, is corrected to read:

**1. Provide leadership.** Provide leadership in efforts to end homelessness and provide support to the regional homeless councils by ensuring access to senior-level government officials and the Office of the Governor;

## EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 21. 30-A MRSA §5951, sub-§2, ¶A**, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 and Pt. C, §106 and amended by PL 1989, c. 6; c. 9, §2; and c. 104, Pt. C, §§8 and 10, is corrected to read:

- A. The Treasurer of State who serves as a commissioner ex officio:
  - (1) The Treasurer of State may designate the Deputy Treasurer of State to serve in place of the Treasurer of State;

## EXPLANATION

This section makes a technical correction.

---

**Sec. 22. 32 MRSA §18344, sub-§1, ¶B,** as enacted by PL 2015, c. 429, §21, is corrected to read:

B. Verification of one of the following:

- (1) A current certificate as a certified dental assistant from a board-approved certificate program;
- (2) An active dental hygiene license in good standing issued under the laws of this State; or
- (3) An active dental hygiene license in good standing issued under the laws of another state or a Canadian province; ~~and~~

## EXPLANATION

This section makes a technical correction.

---

**Sec. 23. 34-B MRSA §1951, sub-§1,** as enacted by PL 2015, c. 266, §1, is corrected to read:

**1. Institution.** "Institution" means a public or private psychiatric institution licensed under Title 22, ~~chapters~~ chapter 404 or 405 to provide psychiatric services that fall under the jurisdiction of the department.

## EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 24. 36 MRSA §2551, sub-§11,** as amended by PL 2015, c. 300, Pt. A, §31, is corrected to read:

**11. Private nonmedical institution services.** "Private nonmedical institution services" means services, including food, shelter and treatment, that are provided by a private nonmedical institution.

## EXPLANATION

This section corrects a headnote to reflect the subject of the subsection.

---

**Sec. 25. 36 MRSA §6851, sub-§8, ¶B,** as enacted by PL 1997, c. 449, §1, is corrected to read:

B. Whose income from that employment is taxable under ~~Title 36~~, chapter 803;

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 26. 38 MRSA §411, 4th ¶**, as enacted by PL 1991, c. 238, §2, is corrected to read:

For small individual projects, following a period of 90 days from the date of application for assistance under this section, or as ground conditions permit, the unavailability of financial assistance under this section does not relieve an applicant of an obligation to comply with the state water classification program, ~~Title 38~~, chapter 3, subchapter I, article 4-A or any other provision of law.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 27. 38 MRSA §480-CC, sub-§2, ¶B**, as enacted by PL 2007, c. 290, §7 and affected by §15, is corrected to read:

B. Cutting or removal of vegetation within a feeding buffer is prohibited except as approved by the department for:

(1) Cutting or removal of vegetation that meets the vegetative screening standards set forth in ~~Title 38~~, section 439-A, subsection 6. In interpreting and enforcing these standards, the department shall rely upon the department's shoreland zoning rules regarding cutting or removal of vegetation for activities other than timber harvesting and apply the cutting standards applicable within 75 feet of a coastal wetland to the entire 100-foot feeding buffer; and

(2) Cutting or removal of vegetation determined to be necessary by the department in order to conduct other activities approved by the department pursuant to section 480-C and in accordance with the standards of this article and rules adopted pursuant to this article, including but not limited to avoidance, minimization and no unreasonable impact.

This paragraph may not be construed to limit a municipality's authority under home rule to adopt ordinances containing stricter standards than those contained in this paragraph.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 28. 38 MRSA §1310-C, sub-§3**, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 517, §25, is corrected to read:

**3. New facilities.** The department shall ensure that the siting, design, operating and closure requirements imposed on new solid waste disposal facilities pursuant to this chapter and chapter 3, subchapter 1, article 6, site location of development, are consistent with the provisions of this article.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 29. 38 MRSA §1319-I, sub-§4-B,** as amended by PL 1995, c. 642, §12, is corrected to read:

**4-B. Fee on hazardous materials transported by railroad.** Any person who transports more than 25 tons of certain hazardous materials as specified in this subsection at any one time by rail shall register annually with the commissioner. Fees for the transportation of hazardous materials by rail are imposed on the registrant who first transports the materials in the State by rail. Fees for the transportation of hazardous materials are determined by one of the following methods:

- A. Fifteen cents per ton of hazardous materials transported by the registrant during the period of registration paid quarterly by the registrant on the basis of records certified to the commissioner; or
- B. Twenty-five thousand dollars paid at the time of registration.

The registrant shall select the method of payment at the time of registration. Fees are paid to the department and upon receipt credited to the Maine Hazardous Waste Fund. A registrant selecting quarterly payments is automatically subject to the \$25,000 annual registration fee if the fee for any quarter has not been paid to the Maine Hazardous Waste Fund within 60 days after the fee becomes due. Hazardous materials subject to the requirements of this subsection are those substances listed in 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 172.101, Subpart B, 1994, except that, for purposes of this subsection, "hazardous materials" does not include oil as defined in ~~Title 38~~, section 542, subsection 6. The registrant shall make available to the commissioner and the commissioner's authorized representatives all documents relating to the hazardous materials transported by the registrant during the period of registration.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 30. 38 MRSA §1455, sub-§4,** as enacted by PL 1999, c. 739, §3, is corrected to read:

**4. Compliance with applicable law; assessment of compliance.** A nuclear facility owner must obtain and be in compliance with all licenses, permits and approvals required under this Title, including, but not limited to, those required under chapter 3, subchapter 1, article 6 and chapter 13 for the site at which the decommissioning of a nuclear power plant is occurring or has been completed. In addition to its existing authority to require monitoring wells and other measures for nonradiological environmental issues under chapters 3, 13, 13-B

and other applicable laws, the department may require radiological monitoring, use of monitoring wells, use of liners, soil sampling and other measures at the site to allow the department to assess and ensure compliance with applicable requirements of this Title, including, but not limited to, subsection 2, and the terms of any licenses and permits issued pursuant to this Title with respect to the site.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 31. PL 2015, c. 500, §2, sub-§§3 and 5** are corrected to read:

3. The work group ~~group~~ shall provide opportunities for the public and interested parties to provide input regarding the development of the school accountability system and shall give notice to the public and interested parties of the work group's meetings during which the public may provide information or feedback on the proposed models under consideration by the work group.

5. The Commissioner of Education shall submit an interim report on the review required by subsection § 4 and a final report on the review required by subsection § 4 to the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over education matters no later than January 15, 2017. The report must include the work group's findings and recommendations and any necessary legislation regarding the implementation of a school accountability system. The committee is authorized to report out a bill to the First Regular Session of the 128th Legislature related to the recommendations included in this report.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error and cross-references.

---

**Sec. 32. PL 2015, c. 500, §3** is corrected to read:

**Sec. 3. Rules.** In adopting the rules required under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 6214 related to implementing a school accountability system consistent with the requirements of Title 20-A, chapter 222, the Department of Education shall adopt rules that are consistent with the recommendations of the work group convened under section 2 submitted as part of the report required under section 2, subsection 6 5. The department shall file provisionally adopted major substantive rules with the Legislature by the January 5, 2018 statutory deadline for the submission of major substantive rules to be reviewed by the Legislature.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---

**Sec. 33. P&SL 1977, c. 98, §6, 3rd ¶** is corrected to read:

If any person or corporation sustaining damages by any taking ~~as~~ as aforesaid and the water district shall not mutually agree upon the sum to be paid therefor, either party, upon petition to the county commissioners of Piscataquis County, may have those damages assessed by them; and the procedure and all subsequent proceedings and right of appeal thereon shall be had under the same restrictions, conditions and limitations as are or may be by law prescribed in the case of damages by the laying out of town ways.

## EXPLANATION

This section corrects a clerical error.

---

**Sec. 34. P&SL 1977, c. 98, §12** is corrected to read:

**Sec. 12. Procedure in case trustees and ~~Guilford-Sangerville~~ Guilford-Sangerville Water Company fail to agree on terms of purchase.** In case the trustees fail to agree with the Guilford-Sangerville Water Company upon terms of purchase, then the district, through its trustees aforesaid, is hereby authorized to take the properties, interest and franchises of the Guilford-Sangerville Water Company as set forth in section 11, in the manner hereinafter provided wherein the Guilford-Sangerville Water Company and its mortgagees, if any, or those having an interest in any realty which is of record, shall be the parties ~~defendent~~ defendant. The district, through its trustees, is hereby authorized to file a petition in the clerk's office of the Superior Court for the County of Piscataquis, addressed to any justice thereof who, after notice to the ~~defendent~~ defendant aforesaid, shall, after hearing and within 60 days after the filing of the petition, appoint 3 disinterested appraisers for the purpose of fixing the valuations of the plant, property and franchises of the Guilford-Sangerville Water Company described in section 11. The court may order under proper terms the production for inspection by the trustees or the appraisers of all books and papers pertaining to the issue on petition for the same by the petitioner, unless the same are voluntarily produced. The appraisers shall have the power to administer oaths. The appraisers so appointed shall, after due notice and hearing, fix the valuation as of the date of filing the petition of the plants, properties and franchises at what they were fairly and equitably worth so that the company shall receive just compensation for the same. The report of the appraisers or of a majority of them, together with the report of a stenographer certified by the appraisers as correct, shall be filed in the clerk's office within 6 months after their appointment and any Justice of the Superior Court may after notice and hearing confirm or reject the same or recommit it if justice so requires. Upon the confirmation of the report, the court so sitting shall thereupon make final decree upon the entire matter, including the application of the purchase money and transfer of the property, jurisdiction over which is hereby conferred, and with the power to enforce the decree as in equity cases. All findings of fact by the court and the appraisers shall be final, but any party aggrieved may take exceptions as to any matters of law, the same to be accompanied by so much of the case as may be necessary to a clear understanding of the question raised thereby. These exceptions shall be claimed on the docket within 10 days after the final decree is signed, entered and filed and notice thereof has been given by the clerk to the parties and the exceptions so claimed shall be made up, allowed and filed within that time unless further time is granted by the court or by agreement of the parties. They shall be entered at the next term of the law court to be held after the filing of these exceptions and there heard, unless otherwise agreed, or the law court for good cause shall order further time for hearing thereon. On payment of tender by the district of the amount determined by the final decree and the performance of all other terms and conditions imposed by the court, the

plant, properties and franchises of Guilford-Sangerville Water Company, as described in section 11, shall become vested in this district.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects clerical errors.

---

**Sec. 35. P&SL 1995, c. 17, §1** is corrected to read:

**Sec. 1. Territorial limits; corporate name; purposes.** Subject to ~~section 16~~ section 15, the inhabitants and territory of that part of the Town of Franklin in Hancock County, comprised of the area starting at a point in West Franklin at the intersection of Grist Mill Stream and the tidewaters of Taunton Bay; proceeding easterly along the northern shore of Taunton Bay and Hog Bay to a point in East Franklin where the tidewaters of Hog Bay intersect Card Mill Stream; proceeding northerly along the western shore of Card Mill Stream to the intersection with the southern border of Lot 29, Map 7, Property Map of Franklin; thence proceeding westerly along the southern border of Lot 29 to its intersection with Route 182; thence diagonally in a southwesterly direction to the northwest border of Lot 66, Map 7; thence northwesterly along the northern border of Lot 66, Map 7, until its intersection with Lot 38, Map 6; thence westerly along the northern border of Lot 38, Map 6, to the intersection at the southeast corner of Lot 3, Map 9; thence northerly and westerly along the border of Lot 3, Map 9, until its intersection with Lot 4, Map 9; thence northeasterly and northwesterly along the border of Lot 4 until its intersection with Lot 4-1, Map 9; thence northerly and westerly along the border of Lot 4-1, Map 9 until the intersection with the Georges Pond Road; thence northerly along the Georges Pond Road until the intersection with the Bunkers Beach Camp Road; thence northerly and westerly along the southern border of the Bunkers Beach Camp Road until the intersection of the southern border of Lot 41, Map 17; thence westerly along the southern border of Lot 41 until the intersection with the eastern border of Lot 40, Map 17; thence northerly along the eastern border of Lot 40 until the intersection with Georges Pond; thence westerly following the shore of Georges Pond until the intersection of the northeast corner of Lot 20, Map 9; thence westerly along the northern border of Lot 20 until the intersection of Lot 19, Map 9; thence southerly and westerly along the border of Lot 19 until the southwest corner of Lot 19, Map 9; thence westerly along the southern borders of Lots 4, 3, 2, 46, 42, Map 8 until its intersection with the Grist Mill Stream; thence following the eastern shore of Grist Mill Stream to the point of the beginning constitute a body politic and corporate under the name of "Franklin Utility District," referred to in this Act as the "district." The district is created and established for the purposes of supplying the Town of Franklin, its inhabitants and others of the district with potable water and sewage treatment and disposal services.

### EXPLANATION

This section corrects a cross-reference.

---